
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PLANNING BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 

TUESDAY FEBRUARY 23, 2016 
7:00 PM 

HOOD ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL 
 
 
 

     I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – January 26, 2016 
 

III. ELECTION OF CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR  
 
IV. ADMINISTRATIVE AMENDMENT – Fullwood Station 
 
 V. ADJOURNMENT 
 
  
 
  
 

  
  

 
  

     
   
 
   

 
 

 
 
 
PlBd ag 2-23-16 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
MEMO 
 
 
TO:  Planning Board Members 
FROM: Kathi Ingrish 
DATE:  February 15, 2016 
RE:  February 23, 2016 Planning Board Meeting 

 
 
Since today is President’s Day, let’s take a moment to appreciate the orderly chaos that is the democratic process we 
practice in our country.  OK, now on with your daily activities.  Planning Board has a very brief agenda this month.  We 
will have an opportunity to meet newly appointed members Kress Query, Kerry Lamson, and Gregory Lee. 
 
For February, we can hold elections for Chair and Vice-Chair.  Any regular (voting) member may be selected for Chair or 
Vice-Chair positions.  Steve Lee has been Chair for the past year and is in his second term on the Board.  He is eligible 
to serve in the same capacity again.  Rob Markiewitz was the Vice-Chair in 2015 but has rotated off the Board, so other 
regular members include:  Michael Ham, Barbara Dement, David Pratt, David Weiser, and David Barley. 
 
The other item for your attention this month, since we did not have any zoning public hearings, is an Administrative 
Amendment for Fullwood Station, a single-family residential development across from MARA on S Trade Street.  This is 
a process of making changes to an approved conditional zoning plan that is minor in nature, and may be handled at 
three levels – by staff, by the Planning Board, or by Town Board.  In this situation, the changes requested may fall within 
the definition of an Administrative Amendment because it doesn’t increase the number of houses, or decrease parking, 
but the culmination of changes is significant enough to warrant a careful look.  There are multiple aspects to the 
requested changes, including removal of existing trees, which has been a high concern to Council members in recent 
months, removal of a sidewalk connection that changes internal walking patterns for future residents, and increasing 
grading and berming along the road frontage, which in turn means removal of trees.  A somewhat similar situation last 
year at a nearby new subdivision – Eden Hall – began as an Administrative Amendment that Planning Board forwarded 
to Town Board with a recommendation they allow for some public input prior to taking a vote.  Planning staff suggests 
you take the same approach for this site. 
 
 
As always, please let one of us know if you find you will be unable to attend next Tuesday’s meeting.   
 
 
 
 
 
PlBd ag 2-23-16 memo 



MINUTES 
PLANNING BOARD 

TUESDAY, JANUARY 26, 2016 
7:00 PM 

HOOD ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL 
 

 
PRESENT: Chairman Steve Lee; Vice Chair Rob Markiewitz; Members David Pratt, Michael Ham, Barbara 

Dement and Gary Turner; Alternate Member David Wieser; Town Attorneys Charles Buckley III 
and Craig Buie; Youth Voice Carly Newton; Planning Director Kathi Ingrish, Senior Planner Jay 
Camp and Administrative Assistant/Deputy Town Clerk Betty Lynd. 

 

ABSENT:  Alternate Member David Barley 
 
MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
 
Chairman Steve Lee called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES- November 24, 2015 
 
Mr. Ham made a motion to approve the minutes as submitted. Ms. Dement seconded the motion and it carried 
unanimously. 
 
ZONING APPLICATION 2015-640- National Heritage Academy and Team Church, 2248 Mt Harmony 
Church Rd, R/I(CD) Change of Conditions to Add a School, New Driveway Entrance, and Shared Parking, 
Storm Water Detention, and Outdoor Recreation Facilities 
 
Mr. Camp presented the updated site plan that the applicant submitted last week. There were a few updates 
since the public hearing. A playground area was added, as well as a pump station for Charlotte Water. The 
Mayor asked about comparing the original notes from 2009 to the new conditional notes during the public 
hearing. Mr. Camp stated that Mr. Carmichael would address those concerns for the applicant.  
 
Mr. Lee asked where the pump station would be located. Mr. Camp indicated it would be at the rear of the site 
towards the woods. Mr. Lee asked if there were any environmental impacts. Mr. Camp state he believed that it 
would be noiseless and odorless, but would have to get further detail from the engineers. 
 
Mr. Carmichael, speaking for the applicant, stated that at the public hearing there was a question about the 
original conditional notes on the plan. He stated that the applicant tried to move forward as many of the original 
notes as possible. There are commitments to complete all improvements necessary as a result of the traffic 
study and NCDOT comments. The building materials in the original notes are maintained in the new application. 
 
Bob Dunston, the applicant, stated that during the public hearing the Town Board mentioned wanting to see 
more detailed images of the elevations. The applicant presented some color renderings of the building. He 
stated that the masonry elements on the façade meet the original conditions. The applicant also presented a 
photograph of a school with the same elevation they just completed in Winterville, North Carolina. 
 
Mr. Lee stated that they would just be giving a recommendation on the application. He asked if the applicant 
would consider other changes to possibly match the architecture of the adjacent Team Church. Mr. Dunston 
stated that the design of the church would not be an efficient or cost effective design for the school. 
 
Ms. Dement asked about more windows or natural light. Dustin Summer with National Heritage Academies 
stated that there are two 3x5 windows per classroom to allow enough wall space for educational materials. 
 
Mr. Ham asked how many times this particular elevation has been built. Mr. Summer stated that it has been built 
approximately five times. Mr. Ham stated that the building does not express a uniqueness to Matthews. The 
design of the building is not inviting to students. It also does not match the aesthetics of Team Church. Mr. 
Summer stated that the interior of the building uses the brand colors prominently. Mr. Summer said the awning 
over the front entry could have added color. 
 



Planning Board Minutes 
January 26, 2016 

 

 

 2 

Mr. Turner stated that his main concern is traffic impact, specifically with the morning peak times. He asked if 
the traffic study has been completed. Mr. Dunston stated that it has been completed. Aimee Giacherio, the 
traffic engineer, stated that NCDOT has stated that they approve of the improvements outlined in the study, but 
have yet to receive the official letter. The only improvement not approved is the desire for a 4-way stop at 
Stevens Mill Road and Mt. Harmony Church Road. Mr. Turner asked if the improvements were reflected on the 
site plan. Mr. Carmichael stated that there is a note on the plan that the applicant agrees to all improvements 
deemed necessary by NCDOT. 
 
Mr. Lee asked if easements needed to be obtained. Mr. Dunston stated that a further survey was being 
completed, but they did not anticipate more easements to accommodate road improvements. 
 
Mr. Lee asked if the traffic study reflected how much traffic occurs on site during the morning and evening peak 
hours. Ms. Giacherio stated that she completed traffic counts in October on site. She stated that she completed 
counts based on left and right turns. The biggest flow was on Stevens Mill Road. There were 125 turning left 
and 162 turning right in one hour.  
 
Mr. Wieser asked about shared parking with the church. Mr. Dunston stated that they could support their site 
with their own parking and driveway. There is over 4300 feet of driveway. They will share some parking with the 
church. 
 
Mr. Pratt asked about the number of vehicles the queuing lane could support. Ms. Giacherio stated that it can 
support approximately 175 cars. Mr. Turner asked how the drop off lanes would flow. Ms. Giacherio explained 
the drop off and pick up process. There would be a lane dedicated to the larger daycare vans. 
 
Mr. Markiewitz asked about weekend activities. Mr. Dunston stated that there would be few weekend activities. 
The recreational activities would mostly consist of afterschool programs. 
 
Mr. Lee asked about lighting. Mr. Dunston stated that the recreational fields will not be lighted at the moment. 
Any future lighting will follow the ordinance standards. 
 
Ms. Dement suggested matching the architecture of the church’s front entrance. She stated it would be more 
welcoming than the proposed elevation. 
 
Mr. Dunston stated that they have received over 700 applications for grades K-6. The application period remains 
open until February. 
 
Mr. Lee stated that he believes it is a great concept. This is a very modern looking building. Mr. Ham stated the 
church’s design has more angles. He also stated that he is not happy with an off-the-shelf design. Ms. Dement 
stated that windows around the front entrance could make all the difference, especially with the longevity of the 
building. 
 
Ms. Dement asked to consult the youth voice, Carly Newton. Ms. Newton stated that she believe aesthetics 
were more important to the parents than the students. 
 
Mr. Turner made a motion to recommend approval of the application as it is consistent with Matthews Land Use 
policies as it is an appropriate use for shared facilities. Mr. Markiewitz seconded the motion. Mr. Ham asked to 
amend the motion to encourage the applicant to consider some design changes to make it more in harmony 
with the adjacent church. Mr. Markiewitz was concerned making the buildings match the church could make the 
development look like a church complex. The board voted on the original motion and it passed unanimously. 
 
ZONING MOTION 2015-641- ACTS, Text Amendment on Adjacent CCRCs Under the Same Ownership 
Sharing Skilled Nursing Facilities 
 
Ms. Dement disclosed that she is an employee of ACTS. Mr. Buckley stated that employment is not sufficient 
enough to prevent her from voting. 
 



Planning Board Minutes 
January 26, 2016 

 

 

 3 

Mr. Markiewitz make a motion to make Mr. Weiser a voting member. Mr. Ham seconded the motion and it 
passed unanimously. 
 
Mr. Camp discussed the addition of the letter “s” to streets in the text. Otherwise, the text remained unchanged 
from the public hearing. 
 
Ms. Dement asked about the definition of the word “unit” for assisted living. Mr. Camp stated that it is defined as 
an individual dwelling unit. Ms. Dement stated that the word unit is probably not correct in the context of the 
types of dwellings on the ACTS property. 
 
Ms. Ingrish stated that it would be best to present this issue to the applicant to revise the text to make it more 
appropriate to the living situations involved in a CCRC. Mr. Lee asked if staff had knowledge of what language 
other communities used for this situation. 
 
Mr. Markiewitz questioned the phrase “two properties”. He stated there could be larger developments this text 
would need to apply to. 
 
Ms. Dement asked why the text amendment was requested. Ms. Ingrish explained that the text amendment 
allows the new development to utilize the medical facilities of the existing development. This allows the new 
development to meet the standards of a CCRC. 
 
Mr. Turner asked if a variance could solve the problem for ACTS instead of a text amendment. Mr. Buckley 
stated that a variance would not be appropriate for this situation.  
 
Ms. Dement made a motion to recommend approval of application 2015-641. It is consistent with Matthews 
Land Use policies due to several CCRC facilities within the town limits. Mr. Pratt seconded the motion and it 
carried unanimously. 
 
QUICK REVIEW OF COMING YEAR “ATTRACTIONS” 
 
Ms. Ingrish gave a quick update of future projects the staff is working on for the upcoming year. These included 
the E John Street Small Area Plan, the Four Town Alliance and the Downtown Streetscape Plan. She also 
outlined several road projects being studied and designed for construction in the future. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mr. Ham made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:36 p.m. Ms. Dement seconded the motion and it carried 
unanimously. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Betty Lynd 
Administrative Assistant/Deputy Town Clerk 
 



 

 

 
Agenda Item: Administrative Amendment  
      
DATE:  February 16, 2016 
RE:  Fullwood Station  
FROM: Mary Jo Gollnitz, Planner 
 
Background/Issue: 
   
The developer of Fullwood Station, Provident Land Services, is requesting an Administrative 
Amendment to their approved Rezoning Application 2014-621. The request includes i) removal of 
the proposed pedestrian access connection between lots #4 and 5; ii) change conditional note to 
allow removal of all the existing trees along South Trade Street; iii) change conditional note to allow 
for 5’ berm along South Trade St; iv) to change notes in order to terminate mulch walking trail 
internal to the subdivision with a turnaround; and v) approve new home elevations. 
 
The first part of the amendment request involves the pedestrian access that was approved on the 
rezoning plan. The developer had originally discussed placing the pedestrian access between lots 
#5 and #6 near the end of the cul-de-sac (northeast corner of the property towards Fullwood 
Street). During the rezoning process the access was relocated between lots #4 and #5. Without the 
pedestrian access, a property owner along the back of the subdivision would have walk south to the 
subdivision’s main entrance to access South Trade Street, even if they wish to head north towards 
downtown. With the access, you can take a more direct route towards downtown (see attached 
map). 
 
The developer is stating that installing the pedestrian access between homes is a safety and 
privacy issue for future home owners. They have also stated that the grade of the property would 
require more steps than originally planned. The developer has not stated whether placing the 
sidewalk back towards the cul-de-sac could be an alternative solution.  
 
There is an inlet near the proposed cul-de-sac area that may make for a good sidewalk location. 
Installing the sidewalk before homes are constructed would allow a home to be positioned away 
from the sidewalk. Fences, trees and other buffers could be installed along the sidewalk that could 
be well established before potential homebuyers consider purchasing. Attached is a photo of an 
existing sidewalk between two homes in the Country Place neighborhood. 
 
The next two portions of the amendment request is to remove the balance of the trees along South 
Trade Street and install a berm instead of fencing with landscaping. Design Guideline conditional 
note #4.c of the rezoning plan states: “The Petitioner shall create an appropriately landscaped 
corridor along South Trade Street utilizing existing vegetation to the greatest extent possible to 
maintain the natural character of this corridor. A screen fence may be proposed along the Site 
frontage of South Trade Street to deter from highlighting the back of houses from the right of way”.  

 
The applicant did remove large portions of the street side trees that were designated for possible 
tree save (see photos and rezoning plan). The balance of vegetation left along South Trade would 
need to be filled in with new landscape. The applicant has provided comparison photos of existing 
conditions and proposed conditions along South Trade Street. A berm is not in compliance with the 



 

 

approved rezoning plan. Installation of the berm has already begun on site. The developer is 
proposing a five foot (5’) high berm. The berm would also increase the slope of the land toward 
South Trade Street as well as the backyards of homes in the subdivision. The berm cannot be built 
between the new subdivision entrance and Chesney Glen without removal of the remaining trees 
along South Trade frontage. 
 
The rezoning site plan shows fencing between the sidewalk and landscaping without a berm. The 
submitted conceptual landscape plan only shows fencing at the subdivision entrance as part of the 
sign monument. The developer is stating that the new berm would reduce noise from traffic as well 
as from MARA ballfields. It would also provide a more aesthetically pleasing streetscape along 
South Trade Street. The submitted conceptual plan would have to be reviewed for compliance with 
the required landscaping portion of Matthews UDO. 
 
The fourth request refers to the conditional note on the rezoning plan that required the developer to 
explore securing access from the internal Fullwood Station subdivision to Woody Creek Road. 
Provident Land Services has met with the property owners, Bob and Rita Ehlers regarding 
connection of the trail alongside their property. The Ehlers have stated that they do not wish to 
allow for the access and therefore the trail must terminate within the subdivision. A revision to the 
site plan showing the mulch walking path termination point with turnaround will be required. 
 
Lastly, the developer has also made staff aware that the home builder for the subdivision will be 
David Weekly Homes. The elevations that were provided at the time of rezoning were from a 
different home builder. Elevation of homes were included in the approved rezoning package, so 
new elevations from the new builder have been requested so they can be approved as part of this 
Administrative Amendment. As of this writing, new elevations have not been provided. 
 
Matthews UDO provides three levels of approvals for Administrative Amendments; staff review, 
Planning Board Action, and Board of Commissioners action. The Planning Board may approve a 
request for an Administrative Amendment, or may refer the request for change to the Board of 
Commissioners for decision. The Board of Commissioners then can determine whether to hold a 
public input session prior to taking action or take action at their next meeting. 

 
Recommended Motion/Action: 
The changes have a significant effect to South Trade Street corridor. The Commissioners have been 
discussing tree canopy in Matthews as well as tree save requirements. The Town Board plans on 
having further discussions on these issues. Therefore, staff recommends that the Planning Board 
review the changes and refer the decision to the Board of Commissions.  
 
If the Planning Board wishes to take action, statement for both Consistency and Reasonableness 
must be made. They are provided for your convenience. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

















Fullwood Station 

Green—with pedestrian access 

Red—without pedestrian access 

 



SIDEWALK BETWEEN TWO HOMES IN THE COUNTRY PLACE NEIGHBORHOOD 

 



STREET VIEWS FROM JUNE 2015 

 

 

 



 





 

Consistency and Reasonableness Statements for final 
decisions on Administrative Amendments: 
(Complete one statement each for #1 and #2 below.  Provide a site specific explanation for conclusion on 
the reasonableness statement) 

1) The requested zoning action IS REASONABLE and in the public interest because: 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 OR 
 The requested zoning action IS NOT REASONABLE and in the public interest because: 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

2) The requested zoning action, as most currently amended, IS CONSISTENT with the policies for 
development as outlined by the Matthews Land Use Plan, and/or Town’s long-range Vision 
Statements, and/or other adopted policies/plans. 

 

 OR 
The requested zoning action, as most currently amended, IS NOT CONSISTENT with the 
Matthews Land Use Plan and/or other adopted land development policies and plans. 

 

 

 

(Town Board, Planning Board, or staff:  It is acceptable to determine a request is 
INCONSISTENT and still eligible for approval, or that the zoning request is 
CONSISTENT with adopted plans but still vote to deny the request.) 
Consist&Reason Admin Amend 2016 


















